Nomination of the Hefty House
To be Designated as a City Historic Landmark

 City Council Report




[image: image1.png]



Hefty House - Historic Nomination Staff Report

Name of Property
Hefty House
Address of Property
624-626 East Ohio Street
Property Owner
City of Pittsburgh
Nominated by:
Nick Kyrazi
Date Received:
December 22, 2018
Parcel No.:
24-N-118
Ward:
23rd
Zoning Classification:
LNC
Neighborhood
East Allegheny
Council District:
1-Harris
Formal Action Required by the Historic Review Commission:

1. Act on the Preliminary Determination of Eligibility for Historic Designation (7 Feb 2018)

2. Conduct a public hearing for the Historic Designation (7 March 2018)

3. Review the Report prepared by staff for the property in question, and make a recommendation to the City Council on the Historic Designation (7 March 2018)

Formal Action Required by the Planning Commission:

4. Conduct a public hearing for the Historic Designation (20 March 2018)
5. Review the recommendations of the Historic Review Commission and make a recommendation to the City Council on the Historic Designation (3 April 2018)
Formal Action Required by the City Council:

6. Conduct a public hearing
7. Review the recommendations of the Historic Review Commission and the City Planning Commission and take action on the Historic Designation

Facts

1. On 22 December 2017, the staff of the Historic Review Commission received an application for the nomination of the Hefty House to be designated as a City Historic Structure.

2. Description of the Hefty House(as extracted from the nomination form)
The two-and-a-half-story commercial building at 624–626 East Ohio Street stands on the north side of the street, between Middle and East Streets in the East Allegheny section of Pittsburgh’s North Side. The building’s lot is 21 feet wide by 74 feet deep. Its south, or front, elevation abuts directly onto the sidewalk of East Ohio Street; its east and west sides abut the adjoining buildings. There is a very small courtyard at the rear, between 624-626 East Ohio and the garage on lot 24-N-117 facing Emlin Way.

The first story of the front facade has two adjoining half-light entrance doors at its center, evidence of 624-626 East Ohio operating as two distinct commercial spaces, each slightly less than 10-feet wide. (Historic directories also show a long list of separate businesses operating at 624 and 626.) To either side of these doors is a single-light commercial display window. The first story is currently sheathed in plywood paneling with an aluminum-wrapped cornice stretching the width of the building. The second story of the front facade shows the original pattern of fenestration, four double-hung windows of small proportion, evenly spaced, with flush wood lintels and slightly protruding wood sills. Historic maps indicate that the second story brick facade was laid over the older wood-frame building. This would be consistent with the entire facade projecting out one wythe beyond the face of the neighboring buildings. The second story is surmounted by an aluminum-wrapped box gutter without brackets or other ornamentation. The attic story of the front facade has one dormer lined up over the door and middle window of the left (624 E.Ohio) shop. The dormer retains its simplified Greek Revival pediment and trim. The roof decking and dormer sides are sheathed in seamed, tin plate.

There are wood-framed extensions at the rear of both 624 and 626 East Ohio. All walls on the rear of the building are clad with vinyl siding. Open trim and siding joints reveal that the original Dutch-lap clapboard, painted ochre, remains in place. The extension on 624 E. Ohio is two stories tall with a seamed, tin-plate roof. The extension on 626 is one-story and roofed in asphalt tile. The 1872 Hopkins map, the earliest one depicting building footprints, shows two storeroom extensions already extant at the rear of 624-626 East Ohio.
3. History of the Hefty House (as extracted from the nomination form)
The small buildings at 624-626 East Ohio Street are among the oldest buildings in Pittsburgh, probably built in Allegheny Borough, predating Allegheny City’s charter. The earliest available map of 1852 shows only general building coverage but clearly indicates that East Ohio Street was already densely lined with buildings. 

Early commercial activity along this stretch of East Ohio Street was encouraged by its being the terminus of the Allegheny-Butler Turnpike, opened in 1819, and thus the first or last provisioning stop for voyagers. Simple buildings likely predated the Turnpike since East Ohio Street was built atop a significant Indian path. In fact, the 20-degree tilt of Allegheny City’s street grid from the compass points comes from its having been laid out to align with the crossing of the Venango Trail and the Great Path. 

In 1822, the Voegtly and Rickenbach families bought extensive acreage southeast of Allegheny Town along the Allegheny River and East Ohio Street, encouraging many Germans and Swiss who were migrating away from political and economic unrest in the German states to settle in what Alleghenians began calling Deutschtown. 

The Pennsylvania Canal was built through the eastern portion of Allegheny borough prior to 1830 and spurred the construction of many small commercial buildings along East Ohio Street. Once the Canal opened in 1829, almost four million tons of freight were shipped on an average week, leading to rapid development. Due to the Canal’s construction, some of the borough’s landowners had hired surveyors to subdivide the “out lots” they had received with their “town lot” deeds. Specifically, a plan of lots was created around the intersection of East Ohio Street and Madison Avenue. In the 1830’s a plan with First, Second, and Third Streets (now Foreland, Suismon, and Tripoli) as well as three north to south streets was laid out on lots that were in Mary Croghan’s trust.

The land north of Ohio Street that included today’s 624-626 East Ohio had been owned by James O’Hara before his death in 1819. Although building rights on these lots would be sold, ownership of the land would remain with the O’Hara/Croghan/Schenley clan, confounding future attempts to ascertain construction dates for 624-626 East Ohio from the land-deed transfer records. Please note that early on the building would, in fact, have been unnumbered. Plat maps show that when numbers were assigned about 1861 it was called 197 Ohio Street. When buildings on the north side of Ohio were renumbered in the early 1870s, it became 193–195 Ohio Street. Allegheny City then renumbered the property as 624–626 East Ohio Street in 1899.

Because we can not track the construction date or early ownership thread for 624-626 East Ohio Street through the deed records, we look to early directories and census records, which verify that a decade after the Canal opened this area of East Ohio Street was lined with small commercial buildings and was already substantially built up, with many self-employed men operating businesses. The 1839 Allegheny Borough directory attests that buildings on East Ohio Street between the Commons and East Street were occupied by five grocers, five carpenters, five unspecified laborers, three shoemakers, three painters, three men with no occupation, two innkeepers, and one each of the following:  umbrella maker, weaver, cooper, auger and coffee manufacturer, furniture maker, clerk, teacher, brick maker, hat manufacturer, cigar maker, wagon maker, tinsmith, midwife, and ship carpenter.

Not until 1860 did historical records list the occupants of 624-626 East Ohio Street as the German immigrants John Jacob Hefty and Dorothy Hefty. John Jacob worked as a saddle and harness maker.

Commercial uses of 624–626 East Ohio over the years were as follows:

· Tailors Charles Koenig and Ferdinand Yahle in 1873;

· Candy store and bakery by Anton Miller in 1874;

· Real estate and insurance broker George Evans in 1875;

· Saloon by Valentine Guckert, 1875–1876;

· Tobacco and cigar store by George Schaper in 1876;

· G. W. Niesz sold butter and eggs in 1877;

· Augustine Pappert, undertaker, from 1878-1885, probably in the rear portion of the building;

· Tailor Herman Kinder in 1881;

· Allegheny City Gymnastic Club, 1883–1885;

· Cigars made and sold by John Dougan, 1883-1889;

· Saddler August Sontheimer, 1883;

· Office use by Watson Brothers, a company that mined coal in Observatory Hill, 1885-1886;

· Notary and real estate and insurance broker Charles Weitershausen, 1885-1892;

· Barber shop, 1886-1890;

· Offices of the Liberty Building and Loan Association, and Joos and Company, a family-owned printing business, 1892-1893. At the same time, the building also housed John Dietolf, a merchant tailor and Samuel, a baker;

At 624 East Ohio Street:

· Fish store operated by Ferdinand Peters, 1895-1903;

· Christ Schmidt sold both fish and milk there in 1904-1905 followed by Charles Kaercher's fish store in 1906;

· A butter store by Edward Borland in 1907 and by Martha McKay in 1908;

· John Klaeser sold poultry and butter, 1911-1914;

· Philip Chiarmont sold fruit there in 1916;

· Tailor Louis Wolff in 1917;

· Barber John Eissler, 1918-1922, carried on by other barbers through 1928;

· Hat cleaners and shoe repairmen Thomas Kopoulas and George Serdos, 1925-1930;

At 626 East Ohio Street:

· A notions shop by Jacob Fuchs, 1900;

· Confectioner Abraham Sametsky, 1901;

· Tobacconist Andrew Creighton, 1902;

· Milliner Tobias Goldberg, 1903-1905;

· Fruit store by Frank Carsomino, 1906-1907;

· Shoemaker Samuel Marotto, 1908-1912;

· Shoemaker Frank Wastek, 1913-1919;

· Bakery by Joseph Evans, 1920;

· The Vellis Restaurant, 1922;

· Restaurant by Nicholas Mastris, 1925;

· The American Lunch restaurant, 1926-1930.

Mary Schenley and her estate continued to own the land from Avery Street to North Avenue until 1924, when Christ N. Vellis purchased the land under the buildings at 624-626 East Ohio from the trustees of the Schenley estate. In 1938, 624-626 East Ohio Street was sold by Sheriff’s sale to the Peoples-Pittsburgh Trust Company, which sold the property to Henry J. and Anna C. Schellhaas. In 1959, the Schellhaas children and grandchildren who inherited the property subdivided the original 110-foot-deep lot, retaining the back 36-feet (Lot 24-N-117) along Emlin Way and contiguous to the Schellhaas and Son funeral home at 707 East Street. They then sold 624–26 East Ohio (Lot 24-N-118) to Joseph J. and Ruth W. Pack in 1959. The building’s lot has since been 21 feet wide by 74 feet deep. In 1993 Ruth W. Pack sold the property to John Duffy Conley. In 1999 the City of Pittsburgh seized the property for unpaid real estate taxes. In 2005 the City of Pittsburgh sold 624-626 East Ohio Street to Northside Leadership Conference, which sold the property to the Urban Redevelopment Authority of Pittsburgh.

4. Significance of the Hefty House (as extracted from the nomination form)
The Pittsburgh Code of Ordinances, Title 11, Historic Preservation, Chapter 1: Historic Structures, Districts, Sites and Objects lists ten criteria, at least one of which must be met for Historic Designation.  
3. The property is a significant example of modest, small-scale Greek Revival architecture. The Greek Revival style, though dominant in the second quarter of the 19th century is now far less common in Pittsburgh than the Italianate, which succeeded it. This building is the last remaining structure in the historic commercial district of East Ohio Street to continue displaying this style in its historic materials. Early alterations to 624-626 East Ohio maintained the pattern, proportion, and simplicity of its Greek Revival style while documenting the history of changing architectural standards in the rapidly prospering commercial district.

8. The property is an example of the pattern of neighborhood development along the original commercial corridors of old Allegheny Town and Borough. This modest structure is exemplary of the commercial buildings and dwellings that were built along Ohio Street at the access of the Allegheny-Butler Turnpike beginning around 1829, during construction of the Pennsylvania Canal. 624-626 East Ohio Street is surviving proof of the 1830s boom that historian Charles W. Dahlinger called “the Golden Age of Allegheny Town.”

The only intact commercial survivor of the borough era of Allegheny, this 21-foot wide structure at 624–626 East Ohio Street was originally built as two ten-foot wide artisanal shops. 624–626 East Ohio may very well be Pittsburgh’s oldest remaining example of the early, small-scale, commercial structures built by self-employed merchants who ran their businesses from the ground floors of their homes. 

5. Integrity
This building retains its original location, with all its historic significance, bringing a sense of continuity and living history to the community. By connecting to important historical developments stretching from the opening of the Pennsylvania Canal in 1829 to the current revitalization of East Ohio Street, 624-626 conveys the long history of this commercial artery better than any other building in the district. The continuous operation of East Ohio Street as a district of small businesses and neighborhood merchants gives 624-626 East Ohio Street an integrity of context. The preservation and restoration of this historic property would continue the historic lineage of this commercial district and increase residents’ awareness of its long and rich history.

The building’s original design — a small workshop or store on the ground floor and residence above — is typical of that early era when artisans worked out of their homes with little separation between commercial and living space. Preserving this historic pattern of life and work adds to the entire district’s authenticity and integrity. Early alterations, such as adding a brick facade and increasing the visibility into the shop document the changing needs and changing fortunes of its many and varied shopkeepers through its life. Yet, it continues to maintain its original style and form, a humble version of Greek Revival, in its modest proportions and simple ornament, which recall the earliest settlement and development of this area. 
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7. Maps
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8. Recommendation of the Historic Review Commission

The Historic Review Commission held a public hearing regarding the designation of the Hefty House. On March 7, 2018 the Commission vote resulted in a deemed denial to recommend to City Council that it designate the Hefty House as historic.
9. Recommendation of the City Planning Commission

The City Planning Commission held a public hearing regarding the designation the Hefty House. On April 3, 2018 the Commission voted to recommend to City Council that it designate the Hefty House as historic.

10. Meeting Minutes
HRC MINUTES – February 7, 2017 – PRELIMINARY DETERMINATION HEARING
	Pittsburgh HRC – February 7, 2018

	Hefty House

624-626 E. Ohio Street
	                         Historic Nomination    

	Owner:

URA
	Ward:  23rd

Lot and Block:  24-N-118

	Nominator:

Nick Kyriazi
	Inspector:  

Council District:  

Nomination Received:  12/22/17



	National Register Status:
	Listed:
	
	Eligible:
	

	Proposed Changes:   Nomination for historic designation.

	Discussion:

1. Ms. Quinn makes a short presentation on the nomination. She states that the property is significant under Criterion 3, exemplification of an architectural type, style or design distinguished by innovation, rarity, uniqueness, or overall quality of design, detail, materials, or craftsmanship, and possibly Criterion 8, exemplification of a pattern of neighborhood development or settlement significant to the cultural history or traditions of the City, whose components may lack individual distinction. Ms. Quinn states that the nominator found that the property retains sufficient integrity as well.

2. The Commission discusses the nomination.

3. Ms. Quinn presents a letter of support from Preservation Pittsburgh.

	 Motion:

1. Mr. Falcone moves to accept the nomination as it meets at least one of the criteria.
2. [Second is inaudible].

3. Ms. Aguirre asks for a vote; all are in favor and motion carries.


HRC MINUTES –March 7, 2018  RECOMMENDATION
	Pittsburgh HRC – March 7, 2018

	Hefty House

624-626 E. Ohio Street
	                         Historic Nomination    

	Owner:

URA
	Ward:  23rd

Lot and Block:  24-N-118

	Nominator:

Nick Kyriazi
	Inspector:  

Council District:  

Nomination Received:  12/22/17



	National Register Status:
	Listed:
	
	Eligible:
	

	Proposed Changes:   Nomination for historic designation.

	Discussion:

4. Ms. Quinn presents six emails in support of the nomination. She makes a short presentation on the nomination. She states that the nominator found that the property is significant under Criterion 3, exemplification of an architectural type, style or design distinguished by innovation, rarity, uniqueness, or overall quality of design, detail, materials, or craftsmanship, and Criterion 8, exemplification of a pattern of neighborhood development or settlement significant to the cultural history or traditions of the City, whose components may lack individual distinction. Ms. Quinn states that the nominator also found that the property retains sufficient integrity as well. She states that the property is owned by the URA, and they have not expressed an opinion on its historical significance. She recommends that the Commission provide a positive recommendation to City Council.

5. Mr. Gastil asks for a review of the actions taken so far.

6. Ms. Quinn states that at the last meeting, the Commission provided an opinion on the viability of the nomination—if it potentially had enough significance and historical integrity to be nominated.

7. Mr. Gastil states that they voted to approve it and notes that the discussion in the minutes states that they noted that it meets at least one of the criteria for significance.

8. Ms. Quinn states that today the Commission is providing a recommendation to City Council, and the next stop for the nomination will be a briefing before the Planning Commission and a vote.

9. Mr. Gastil reads for the record the criteria for significance. [Criterion 3, exemplification of an architectural type, style or design distinguished by innovation, rarity, uniqueness, or overall quality of design, detail, materials, or craftsmanship, and Criterion 8, exemplification of a pattern of neighborhood development or settlement significant to the cultural history or traditions of the City, whose components may lack individual distinction.] He reiterates what the process will be from here. He states that Planning Commission will make their recommendation to City Council based on a different set of criteria related more to planning issues.

10. Ms. Aguirre asks for public comment.

11. Mr. Nick Kyriazi steps to the podium; he is one of the nominators of the property. He states that the nomination came about because Carol Peterson identified the buildings with their small stature as being some of the oldest in the neighborhood; he asked her to do a house history which confirmed this, although the city records are difficult to follow in some cases.

12. Mr. Stephen Pascal steps to the podium; he is also a nominator of the property. He adds to Mr. Kyriazi’s testimony and states that although the earliest map is 1882, Ms. Peterson went back to the 1830 bureau directory which shows a dense business district on East Ohio. He states that the idea for the nomination had been around for a long time, it was catalyzed when the URA posted for demolition of the property in early December. He states that Ms. Peterson identified the buildings as possibly the oldest on the Northside and even the city after the Old Stone Tavern, and she stated that the loss of them would be unjustifiable. He states that there were quick inspections of the interior which do seem to confirm the age of the buildings. He states that it sounds like the URA in unequivocal on the historical significance, so he quotes the URA’s mandate by state law to preserve existing structures as part of their redevelopment efforts and the URA’s own design guidelines which advocate preservation and restoration. He states that they have been a partner in other projects in the area and hopes they will be supportive. He talks about the idea of preservationists standing in the way of development, but states that that rationale has allowed many vacant lots and non-compatible structures in the area already. He feels that the preservation of this historic building will add a valuable historic context to the commercial district and also would be a tribute to the hard work and knowledge of Ms. Peterson.

13. Mr. Dennis Ginther steps to the podium. He states his strong opposition to the nomination based on what he feels is inconclusive evidence of the structures’ age. He states that he feels that nomination of this structure would be a mistake and set a bad precedent, and he asks for the HRC to be the voice of reason and recommend against designation.

14. Ms. Melissa McSwigan steps to the podium. She wanted to make sure and attend the meeting to voice her support for the nominators’ efforts and the connection with Ms. Peterson, who believed in preservation of homes and businesses of ordinary working people and not just the city’s “mansionscapes”. She states her support of the nomination.

15. Ms. Susan Brandt steps to the podium representing Preservation Pittsburgh. She states their support of the nomination based on its importance as an example of people’s housing and the way the neighborhood of East Allegheny developed.

16. Mr. Mark Fatla steps to the podium representing Northside Leadership Conference as executive director. He talks about the history of planning around this site. He offers some documentation including photos of similar buildings on E. Ohio and elsewhere on the Northside, which he states are arguments against the nominated building being unique. He states that he is a preservationist but is in opposition to the nomination. He addresses the criteria for significance, starting with Criterion 3. He states that the structure may be old but is not unique, and he states that the beams are not enough to justify designation. He states that the structural elements are internal, which the HRC does not have jurisdiction over and should not be the basis for designation. He addresses Criterion 8, stating that the connection to the Pennsylvania Canal is speculative. He provides a historic map showing that the property is several blocks away from the canal. He states that the Greek Revival style and the construction methods cited were in use in the 1830s but also for decades after, so neither is a reliable method for dating the structure. He also talks about Criterion 10 which he feels does not apply either. He addresses the integrity, stating that the structure has few original remaining exterior elements. He states that the building is structurally unsound, and a demolition permit was already issued to the URA prior to the nomination. He talks about the strategic importance of the site to the community plan. He also states that the NSLC is in support of their membership organization, the East Allegheny Community Council, who will speak to their position.

17. Mr. Arthur Perkins steps to the podium. He states that he is on the board of the EACC and states that they are in opposition to the nomination as they are in support of the redevelopment project for the site which would involve demolition of these buildings in order to preserve the buildings around it.

18. Ms. Aguirre asks for additional comment.

19. Mr. Kyriazi steps back to the podium and states that he is also on the board of the EACC but submitted the nomination individually. He stated that he did support the development project 10 years ago, but states that that project has fallen through. He states that there is now a developer that is willing to buy and restore the buildings without subsidies, and he states that the neighborhood has come a long way with the help of the URA and the NSLC, but there is enough investment now that the subsidies are not needed.

20. Ms. Quinn reminds the Commissioners that all they are looking at is the ten criteria for designation and the integrity.

21. Mr. Fatla steps back to the podium to respond. He states that the project has not fallen through and gives some additional history of the development. He disputes the claim that there is another developer and that the restoration can be done without subsidies.

22. Mr. Pascal steps back to the podium to briefly address the issues raised with the exterior and the façade. He states that the exterior elements are very likely in their original configuration. He states that the brick façade is possibly only present on the second story and does date to before 1882.

23. Ms. Aguirre asks for additional testimony; there is none. She asks for discussion from the Commissioners.

24. Ms. Quinn clarifies that whatever they decide today, the nomination is already in process and will go to Planning Commission and City Council.

25. Ms. Asciolla asks for a brief summary of why the nomination was found to have merit last month.

26. Mr. Gastil states that they looked at Criteria 3 and 8, and speaking for himself, he felt that Criterion 8 was a stronger case than Criteria 3 or 10. He states that they have heard a lot about the integrity, and he is interested in the construction methods but states that it is not incorrect that those are outside the Commission’s jurisdiction. He states that it is possible but still speculative that it may retain its original fenestration and clapboard siding.

27. Mr. Falcone clarifies that there is no prohibition on accepting evidence, visual or otherwise, for the Commission to render a decision on the age of the building and whether or not it has historic significance. The purview of design is limited to the exterior visible from the public right-of-way, but the Commission can accept any sort of evidence for the decision. He states that the National Park Service is also very clear about commercial buildings and their evolution through time, and that there is an expectation that first-floor storefronts will evolve. He states that the Commission is not bound by NPS guidelines, but feels that they are helpful in this instance. He understands the public comment and frustration about not having a very clear picture and train of evidence going back to the buildings’ beginning, but he states that in this case it can be expected that they would not have all the records due to the age of the building. He states that he feels they have been presented with enough evidence for the overall age and development of the structure over time, and he feels that the building does meet the criteria as discussed. He notes that they did not discuss Criterion 10 and he does not feel that it applies to this structure.

28. Mr. Gastil asks if he feels the structure has sufficient integrity.

29. Mr. Falcone states that it does.

30. Ms. Loysen states that one of the things that calls out to her is the structure on the inside although they have to discount that it can be protected. She states that so much else has changed on the building over the years but that internal structure shows the craftsmanship and personality of the structure. She states that she defers on the external elements of the structure but does state that the most significant element to her is the massing. She states that overall she is not sure of how the building is particularly special.

31. Ms. Aguirre [inaudible].

	 Motion:

4. Mr. Falcone moves to make a positive recommendation to City Council that the property meets Criteria 3 and 8 and should be considered historic.
5. Ms. Asciolla seconds.

6. Ms. Aguirre asks for a vote; Mr. Falcone and Ms. Asciolla are in favor, Mr. Gastil and Ms. Aguirre are against, and Ms. Loysen abstains. Motion is denied.


PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES –April 3, 2018
CITY PLANNING COMMISSION

Minutes of the Meeting of April 3, 2018  

Beginning at 3:10 p.m.

PRESENT OF THE COMMISSION:
Chairwoman Christine Mondor, 

Gitnik, Brown, Askey, Burton-Faulk, Deitrick, Dick, Mingo

PRESENT OF THE STAFF:
Gastil, Layman, Hanna, Rakus, Kramer, Miller, Quinn

AGENDA ITEMS COVERED IN THESE MINUTES

	Item
	Page No.

	1. Historic Nomination:  624-626 E. Ohio Street
	

	2. Historic Nomination:  3495 Butler Street
	

	3. Historic Nomination:  2803 Bergman Street 
	

	4. Zone Change Petition 804, Accessory Dwelling Units Pilot Garfield Neighborhood 
	

	5. 3241 Development Subdivision, 715 52nd Street, 10th Ward 
	

	6.  Big League Construction Subdivision, 5112 Carnegie Street, 10th Ward 
	

	7.  Chuck and Sons Subdivision Plan, 5158 Keystone Street, 10th Ward 
	

	8.  Paulick Plan of Lots, 258 & 260 45th Street, 9th Ward 
	

	
	


Ms. Mondor chaired today’s meeting and called the meeting to order.

A. ACTION ON THE MINUTES 
On a motion duly moved by Ms. Burton-Faulk and seconded by Mr. Brown the minutes from the March 20, 2018 meeting were approved with corrections submitted by Mr. Brown.   Mr. Gitnik abstained.   

B.
CORRESPONDENCE (See Attachment A for staff reports.)
Ms. Mondor stated that the Commission was in receipt of the following     correspondence:  

C.
DEVELOPMENT REVIEWS  (See Attachment B for staff reports.)

1.
Hearing and Action:  Historic Nomination:  624-626 E. Ohio Street, Hefty House 

Ms. Quinn made a presentation in accord with the attached staff report.  Ms. Quinn recommended approval of the proposal.

The Chairwoman called for comments from the Public.

There being no more comments from the Public, the Chairwoman called for questions and comments from the Commissioners. 

There being no more questions or comments from the Commissioners, the Chairwoman called for the motion.

MOTION:  That the Planning Commission of the City of Pittsburgh provides City Council with a positive recommendation for the Hefty House historic nomination under Section 1101.04(b)(3).

MOVED BY ____________;            SECONDED BY ____________.

IN FAVOR:
Mondor, Gitnik, Brown, Askey, Burton-Faulk, Blackwell, Deitrick, Dick, Mingo

OPPOSED:

None
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